
 WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

        June 20, 2023 
7:00 PM Regular Meeting, Courtroom 

1. Call Regular Meeting to Order

2. Requirements of the Sunshine Law (This meeting was advertised in the Burlington County 
Times on January 6, 2023 and electronic notice was given pursuant to N.J.A.C. 5:39-1.5).

3. Pledge of Allegiance

4. Moment of Silence

5. Roll Call

6. Presentation- Civilian Service Award presented by the Westampton Twp Police Department 
to David Godbolt.

7. Approval of Minutes

a. May 16, 2023 Regular Meeting Minutes

8. Monthly Reports

a. Construction
b. Police
c. Fire/EMS
d. Public Works
e. Tax Collector
f. Court

9. Open Meeting to Public Comment on Agenda Items Only – Please remember to state your 
name and address for the record.

10. ORDINANCES:
Second Reading – Open for Public Hearing.
a. 6-2023 An Ordinance of the Township of Westampton to Fix the Salaries, Wages and 

Compensation of Certain Officials and Employees of the Township of Westampton for 
the Years 2023-2025.

b. 7-2023 An Ordinance of the Township of Westampton to Fix the Salaries, Wages and 
Compensation of Certain Police Officers of the Township of Westampton for the years 
2022-2025.

c. 8-2023 An Ordinance of the Township of Westampton to Fix the Salaries, Wages and 
Compensation for Police Supervisors of the Township of Westampton for the years 
2021-2024.

11. RESOLUTIONS:
a. 85-23 Payment of Vouchers – this resolution approves the payment of bills through 

06/20/2023



 
12. CONSENT AGENDA RESOLUTIONS - RESOLUTIONS NOTE: Consent Agenda items 

are considered to be routine and will be enacted with a single motion; any items requiring 
expenditure are supported by a Certification of Availability of funds; any items requiring 
discussion will be removed from the Consent Agenda. 
a. 86-23 Award of Contract for Grant Writing Services - Millennium Strategies 
b. 87-23 Award of Sale Firetruck Apparatus – Brindlee Mountain  
c. 88-23 Liquor License Renewal - Burlington County Country Club 
d. 89-23 Liquor License Renewal - Crescent Temple AAONMS    
e. 90-23 Liquor License Renewal - Applebees Apple New Jersey LLC  
f. 91-23 Liquor License Renewal - Mount Holly Moose Lodge 737  
g. 92-23 Liquor License Renewal - Courtyard Pollin/Miller Hospitality Strategies INC 
h. 93-23 Liquor License Renewal - Deerwood Country Club 
i. 94-23 Liquor License Renewal - Arcadi Hospitality, Inc. 
j. 95-23 Liquor License Renewal - Hilton Edgewood Management LLC   
k. 96-23 Liquor License Renewal - Westampton Liquors Aashna, Inc. 
l. 97-23 Resolution Approving Purchase from Houston Galveston Regional Planning 

Commission 
m. 98-23 Resolution Approving Change Order for Resolution Number 114-22 for Purchase 

of 2022 Ambulance 
n. 99-23 Resolution Approving a Purchase from the NPP for Gear Lockers 
o. 100-23 Resolution Accepting Clean Communities Grant 
p. 101-23 Resolution Accepting Stormwater Assistance Grant 
q. 102-23 Resolution Accepting Bulletproof Vest Grant 
r. 103-23 Resolution Authorizing Contract for Janitorial and Uniform Services 
s. 104-23 Resolution Approving Purchase from a State Contract Vendor for 2023 Capital 

Improvement - Flooring 
t. 105-23 Resolution Approving New Jersey Coop Membership  
u. 106-23 Resolution Approving Purchase through New Jersey Coop for 2023 Capital 

Purchase – Zero Turn Mower 
v. 107-23 Resolution Approving Purchase from a State Contract Vendor for 2023 Capital 

Improvement – Tire Balancer 
w. 108-23 Resolution Approving Purchase from a State Contract Vendor for 2023 Capital 

Improvement – Police Speed Enforcement Radar 
x. 109-23 Resolution Approving Purchase from a State Contract Vendor for 2023 Capital 

Improvement – Police SUV Interceptor 
y. 110-23 Resolution Imposing Tax Lien  
z. 111-23 Resolution Accepting Donation of Preowned Furniture  

 
13. Open Meeting for Public Comment - Please remember to state your name and  

                        address for the record. 
 

14. Dates to Remember: Next Township Committee Meeting July 11th @ 7PM, Historic 
Commission June 28th @ 7PM, Land Development Board Meeting July 7th @7PM, 
Recreation Committee Meeting July 12th @7PM. Youth Police Academy. June 26th- June 
30th. National Night Out August 1st. 

15. Administrator’s Report 

16.  Committee Liaison Reports/Comments  



17.  Adjournment  
 
Please note: 
During the first public comment period, any resident or taxpayer of Westampton is welcome to comment on 
any governmental item of concern limited to the ordinances and resolutions being considered this evening. 
The second public comment period is open to any item of concern. A total of thirty (30) minutes has been 
allocated for each of the public comment periods. This time may be extended by the Committee.  

If you wish to be heard, come to the podium and give your name and address to the Clerk for the record. The 
amount of discussion of any single speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes. Large groups are urged to 
select someone to represent them. No speaker shall engage in any personally offensive, derogatory or 
abusive remarks. The Mayor shall immediately call to order any speaker who violates this provision. An 
officer of the WTPD may remove any disruptive person at the Mayor’s discretion.   

Public Comment is an opportunity for the public to present their views—both positive and negative. It is not 
a question-and-answer period. Neither the Mayor nor Committee Members will engage in a back-and-forth 
exchange so speakers are encouraged to present all their views. The Mayor as well as any Committee 
Member may respond to any comment after such speaker is finished. The Mayor may refer the speaker to the 
Township Administrator, Department Head or any Committee Member to respond in writing. 



Township of Westampton 

June 01, 2023  9:24:10AM

710 RANCOCAS ROAD

WESTAMPTON, NJ 08060

609-2671891 

OFFICE OF CONSTRUCTION OFFICIAL

Construction Permit Activity Report

RANGE:  05/01/2023  To  05/31/2023

$9,835,397.88

 0

 0

$8,000.00

0

4

13

29

$11,717.00

$4,456.00

$728.00

$2,336.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$1,711.00

$2,316.00

$502.00

$1,991.00

$0.00

$6,520.00

$0.00

$18,695.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$0.00

$18,689.00

$18,695.00

$0.00 $0.00$0.00

7

25

42

1

$0.00

$0.00

 1

 15

 1

$0.00

$9,843,397.88

Cu.ft

Sq.ft

$18,689.00

$0.00

$10,006.00

$2,140.00

$226.00

$0.00

$345.00

$0.00

$0.00

$12,717.00

$6,520.00

$18,695.00

$0.00

$25,215.00

$0.00

$150.00

$25,365.00

SUMMARY

CONSTRUCTION COSTS COUNT

Cost Of Construction: Cubic Footage: Permit Issued:

Cost Of Alteration: Square Footage: Updates Issued:

Cost Of Demolition: All Fees Waived:

Total Cost: Municipal Fees Waived:

PERMIT FEES

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Building:

Electrical:

Fire :Fire : Fire :

Plumbing:

Elevator:

Mechanical:

Plumbing: Plumbing:

Elevator: Elevator:

Mechanical: Mechanical:

ADMIN FEES WAIVED FEES TOTAL FEES

 Building Fees:

Electrical Fees:

Fire Fees:

Plumbing Fees:

Elevator Fees:

Mechanical Fees:

* Total Waived: Technical Fees:

DCA Calculated Fees Waived Fees Collected Fees

Volume Training Fee:

Alteration TrainingFee:

Sub total Training Fee:

TECHNICAL ISSUES

Building Technical:

Electrical Technical:

Fire Protection Technical:

Plumbing Technical:

Elevator Technical:

Mechanical Technical:

Certificate of Occupancy Fee:

Waived Certificate Fees:

Sub Total Certificate Fees:

PERMIT FEES:

FEES:

CERTIFICATE FEES:

NET TOTAL FEES:

PENALTIES COLLECTED:

CCO FEES:

OTHER FEES:

GRAND TOTAL FEES:

CERTIFICATE ISSUES

Certificate of Occupancy:

Certificate of Approval:

Certificate of Continued Occupancy:

$0.00MIN FEES:

$6.00 $0.00 $6.00DCA Minimum Fee:

* By State law (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126c):

$12,717.00 

$0.00 

* By Municipality (see N.J.S. 52:27D-126b):

Report Run For Township of Westampton



















 
 
 

WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP 
EMERGENCY SERVICES 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

May 2023 
 

CHARACTER – INTEGRITY –ACCOUNTABILITY 
 

 



The Westampton Township Emergency Services was dispatched to 385 
calls for service for the month of May 2023 for a total of 1707 calls for 
the year.   
In 2023, EMS calls account for 75% of the departments call volume 
followed by 19% for fire responses, lastly motor vehicle accidents make 
up 6% of the Departments call volume.  (<1% are missed/error call dispatches) 

 

 

 

 

The department failed to respond to a total of 11 calls for the month.  
This represents 3% of the total call volume.  During the same time 
period the fire apparatus responded understaffed (3 or less) 20 times.  
This represents 18% of total fire responses.  Year to date the 
department has missed 58 (3%) calls and responded understaffed 121 
(27%) times. 

 

 

6

3

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

Fire MVA BLS ALS

Number and Type of Calls Missed for 
May 2023



Mutual Aid 

 

 

 

The department was cancelled prior to arrival on 45 incidents for the month of May, 2023. 

 

 

 

167

62

16 17
2 0

28

41

8 10 8
0

20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

Westa
mpton

Ea
sta

mpton

Burlin
gto

n

Lu
mbert

on

Hain
esp

ort

Mount L
au

rel

Mount H
olly

Willi
ngb

oro

Rt. 2
95

NJTP
Other

Monthly Calls Given By District

May



 
Note: A shared service agreement is in place with Eastampton, as we 

are their primary EMS provider.  

 

 

 

8 10

54

4

31

3

13

4

54

2

23

2

12
16

58

3

40

7
12

7

54

2

48

3
7

12

66

4

53

5

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Mount Holly Burlington Eastampton Lumberton Willingboro Other

Aid Given - EMS

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

12

3
2

3

1

3
2

0 0 0

12

3

0
1

0

6

2
1

0 0

13

3

1 1
0

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

Mount Holly Burlington Willingboro Lumberton Other

Aid Received - EMS

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May



 

 

 

 

 
 

12

0

4

9

0

2
3 3

10

0
1

11

1 1
2

0

16

0

4

14

0
1 1

2

7

1 1

6

0
1

3

5

15

3
2

8

1
2

3

0
0

2

4

6

8

10

12

14

16

18

Moun…

Burlin
…

Ea
sta

…

Lu
mb…

Moun…

Pem
b…

Willi
n…

Other

Aid Given - Fire

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May

0

1

0 0

2

3

00 0 0 0 0

1

00

1

0 0

2

4

1

0 0 0 0 0

2

0

1

0 0 0 0

2

0
0

0.5

1

1.5

2

2.5

3

3.5

4

4.5

Mount
Holly

Burlington Lumberton Eastampton Willingboro Mount
Laurel

Other

Aid Received - Fire

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

May



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

       

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Incident/Events 2023 

1/7- Westampton- MVA Rescue 

1/9- Westampton- DOA 

1/12- Mount Holly- Teach Rescue 

1/13- Eastampton- DOA 

1/13- Eastampton- Cardiac Arrest 

1/16- Willingboro- House Fire 

1/16- Westampton- Overdose 

1/16- Westampton- Trauma 

1/18- Westampton- Trauma 

1/25- Burlington- Cardiac Arrest 

1/29- Mount Holly- Cardiac Arrest 

1/30- Burlington- Cardiac Arrest 

1/31- Westampton- Hotel Fire 

1/31- Florence- Hazmat Incident 

2/1- Willingboro- House Fire 

2/1- Westampton- DOA 

2/3- Mount Holly- House Fire 

2/4- Mount Holly- Rescue/Trauma 

2/6- Mount Holly- Cardiac Arrest 

2/9- Eastampton- Cardiac Arrest 

2/12- Cinnaminson- Hazmat Incident 

2/16- Burlington- Cardiac Arrest 

2/16- Rt. 295- Car Fire 



2/17- Eastampton- Cardiac Arrest 

2/20- Willingboro- Cardiac Arrest 

2/21- Mount Holly- Building Fire 

3/1- Willingboro- Cardiac Arrest 

3/8- Westampton- Fatal House Fire 

3/9- Westampton- Pedestrian MVA 

3/10- Burlington- Cardiac Arrest 

3/10- Mount Holly- DOA 

3/14- Eastampton- Cardiac Arrest/Save 

3/18- Westampton- Brush/Shed Fire 

3/18- NJTP- Car Fire 

3/19- Westampton- Forest Fire 

3/20- Florence- 6 Alarm Church Fire 

3/21- Eastampton- DOA 

3/31- Westampton- Overdose 

3/31- Rt. 295- Trauma/Fly/Fatal MVA 

4/1- Westampton- Trauma 

4/5- Springfield- Rescue 

4/8- Springfield- Fire 

4/10- Westampton- OTC Fire 

4/10- Westampton- Overdose 

4/12- Pemberton- Building Fire 

4/12- Rt. 295- Rescue 

4/12- Mount Holly- Cardiac Arrest 



4/15- Eastampton- Overdose 

4/15- Mount Holly- House Fire 

4/16- Westampton- Shed Fire 

4/18- Southampton- Forest Fire/Building 

4/20- Westampton- Overdose 

4/20- NJTP- Rescue 

4/20- Rt. 295- Car Fire/Trauma 

4/24- Willingboro- DOA 

4/25- Willingboro- House Fire 

5/2- Westampton- Garage Fire 

5/3- Eastampton- Overdose 

5/5- Westampton- Vehicle Fire 

5/5- Westampton- Overdose 

5/8- Mount Holly- Overdose 

5/21- Eastampton- DOA 

5/22- NJTP- Rescue/Unconscious 

5/24- Westampton- Overdose 

5/26- Mount Holly- Overdose 

5/27- Willingboro- Trauma 

5/27- Willingboro- House Fire 

5/30- Westampton- Trauma 

5/31- Willingboro- House Fire 

 

 



 

 

 

 
 



  

June 12, 2023 

To: Mayor & Committee 

From: Christian Taylor, Director of Public Works 

Subject: May 2023 Department Report 

Roads 

Brush:  Brush collection was busy this month with a total of 34.8 tons of brush being 

collected. Brush collection took a total of 8 days to complete.   

Street Repairs:  In early April DPW received a report that a tree had fallen from the 

township property on Amara Lane into a backyard after a wind event. There were some 

large trees that had died on the township property that needed to be removed.  About 

mid-May once the brush collection took place DPW removed the trees.   

 There are some issues with dead/ dangerous trees along Third Steet in Rancocas. 

I am currently working with PSEG to come up with a scope of work. 

  We have received a quote from the engineer for repair of the storm drain on 

Tuliptree and Dogwood Drives was submitted for review.  

 In late April DPW received a report of a backup storm drain at the intersection of 

Tallowood Drive and Sherwood Lane. We looked at the situation and with the help of 

Mt Holly MUA we were able to clear the clogged drain. An inspection was done and 

found that the pipe had internal damage that caused the backup. DPW will be 

scheduling the repair soon. Additionally, the sinkhole at the intersection of Bloomfield 

Drive and Russo Drive is being addressed and quotes are being obtained. They should be 

in by the first week in June.    

Lastly, frequent illegal dumping is starting to occur on Kings Road. DPW 

responded once last month for cleanups of household/ construction debris left on the 

roadside.  All info found in the trash is referred to the Police for investigation. If you are 

see someone dumping, please report it immediately.    



Gov pilot was launched internally the last week in May.  We will be doing a 3-

week trial internally to sharpen employee knowledge and work out the kinks in the 

system before going live with the resident side of the system. We are looking at the 3rd 

week in June for the resident side to be available. The software will provide a mobile 

app. for residents to report concerns and issues within the town. There will also be a link 

provided on the township website for reporting concerns, and residents will be able to 

call in to report issues.  I will be releasing some tutorials shortly on our social media 

outlets to help the residents get started on using the system.   Once launched residents 

will still be able to call directly and report their needs and concerns as well.   

Recycling:  A normal flow of requests for new cans and lid repairs continues. We have 

new cans in stock, THE COST IS 60$ AND MUST BE PAID AT THE MUNICIPAL BUILDING 

BEFORE DELIVERY. We are fine with lid replacements and will continue to service those 

requests in a timely fashion.  

Leaf Collection: Completed for the Spring, next collection will be the last week in 

October 2023.  

Grass: Grass season is moving along smoothly and on track.      

Snow:   Wrapped up for the season. 

Facilities 

Municipal Building:  N/A 

 

Sports complex\Parks: N/A 

 Spring Meadows:  The Township has been awarded the contract for replacement of the 

play structure at the park.  I reached out to the contractor about the installation time 

and they pushed it back to mid -summer.  Unfortunately, the structure hasn’t come in 

yet. I will continue to press them for this to get completed.     

Rolling Hills/ Rolling Hills East: Westampton Township is proud to announce that a 

grant for $45,000 was procured from the State for the replacement of the park.  We will 

keep you informed as progress continues.   

Tarnsfield Park: N/A        

DPW Building: N/A 



Rec. Center: A leak was discovered after a heavy rain in the roof, DPW fixed the leak to 

get us though the year, however we will need to look into a new roof for next year.  

Firehouse:  N/A 

American Legion: N/A.  

Equipment Repairs & Maintenance 

Public Works:      

#1 Backhoe   Oil change, Inner air filter, Outer air filter, Fuel filter, Fuel water separator, 
Grease 
 
#36 Oil change, Grease, Add coolant 
 
#45 Oil change, fuel filter, fuel/water filter, grease, grease clam bucket 
 
#12 Replace upper and lower alternator bolt, Replace both hyd hoses on RH wheel 
 
#13 Replace deck belt 
 
#16 Replace alternator/water pump belt, Replace LH spring pulley and LH belt 
 
#17 Replace both deck drive belts, Replace Lh belt, Replace idler pulley for rear serp. 
Belt 
 
#46 Replace rear rotors, rear pads, rear calipers, rear brake hoses, drivers rear metal 
brake line, replace spare tire with new tire on aluminum rim, put tires off 48 onto 46, 
Remove trailer hitch due to rust 
 
#55 Replace climate control fan speed switch 
 
#65 Replace 2 front tires, wiper blades, grease, install ipad mount 
 
#67 Replace front rotors, front pads, front calipers, front hoses, Fuel filters, Fuel water 
sensor, Lower half of lower fuel filter housing, Rotate front tires side to side 
 
#68 Oil change, Air filter, Tire rotation 
Other minor repairs. 

Police: 

#2710 Oil/ filter change 



#2703 Oil/ filter change, Brakes front and rear, PS front wheel bearing 

Chief Tahoe Oil change, Air tires to 40psi, wiper blades 
 
Lieutenant Tahoe Oil change, Air tires to 40psi, wiper blades 
  

Other minor repairs 

Fire Dept.: 

N\A 

Recreation: 

Personnel Training:   N/A 

Expenses:   

* For any services rendered, please also check the bill list accompanying the Committee 

agenda. Some costs for goods may be on a bill list subsequent to this report. 

 

 



MONTHLY REPORT

Westampton Township
Office of the Tax Collector

May-23

Receipts Month-to-Date Year-to-Date
Current Year Taxes 2,814,601.48                   14,419,253.54              
Prior Year Delinquent Taxes 25,264.72                         145,525.00                    
Interest on Taxes 5,199.32                            16,128.03                       
Arrears -                                      1,597.30                         
Outside Lien Redemption 20,625.20                         54,306.05                       
Municipal Lien Redemption -                                      -                                   
Tax Search Fees -                                      -                                   
Returned Check Fees -                                      -                                   

Sub Total: 2,865,690.72                 14,708,040.74            
Less NSF: (1,645.82)                          (20,507.61)                     
Total: 2,864,044.90                 14,687,533.13            

Prepared by:  Kathy Merkh, Tax Collector



Westampton Municipal Court

2023 January February March April May June July August September October November December TOTALS
Total Revenue $35,917.17 $39,214.46 $37,238.34 $35,250.92 $34,887.92 $182,508.81

Paid to Twp. $11,526.98 $13,685.54 $12,216.24 $12,296.22 $12,273.23 $61,998.21

Paid to County $2,955.00 $3,167.50 $2,034.00 $2,975.48 $3,182.50 $14,314.48

Paid to State $20,616.19 $21,660.92 $22,789.60 $19,424.22 $18,888.69 $103,379.62

County Lab Fees $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Public Defender Fees $689.00 $455.50 $138.50 $535.00 $423.50 $2,241.50

Traffic Added 466 553 418 466 395 2298
149 Local 317 

State

208 Local 345 

State

148 Local 270 

State

198 Local 268 

State

195 Local 200 

State

Traffic Disposed 514 513 582 535 525 2669

Criminal Added 29 18 21 10 32 110

Criminal Disposed 44 26 36 22 48 176

Fish & Game $100.00 $200.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $300.00

Weights & Measures $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Restitution $30.00 $45.00 $60.00 $20.00 $120.00 $275.00



 

 1 

 
TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  

TO FIX THE SALARIES, WAGES AND COMPENSATION OF  
CERTAIN OFFICIALS AND EMPLOYEES  
OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

FOR THE YEARS 2023-2025 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 6-2023 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton, in the 
County of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 
The Township Committee hereby determines and fixes the yearly compensation and 
salaries of the certain full-time officials and employees of the Township of Westampton 
covered under a bargaining unit as follows:  
 
Classification Minimum Maximum 

Deputy Municipal Clerk                      35,366 56,520 

Tax Collector 44,397 67,130 

Construction Official 47,754 75,144 

Executive Secretary 37,764 59,289 

Court Administrator                      47,916 77,911 

Deputy Court Administrator 35,366 56,520 

Secretary Class I 35,366 56,520 

Secretary Class II 33,920 54,003 

Secretary Class III 30,692 49,977 

Violations Clerk 33,918 54,003 

Public Works Supervisor 54,343 85,187 

Public Works Foreman 46,504 71,991 

Public Works Lead Mechanic 46,504 71,991 

PW Equipment Operator 44,511 69,379 

Public Works Laborer 38,959 62,487 

Public Works Mechanic 45,508 70,840 

Computer Manager 1,000 1,104 

Land Dev. Board Secretary 1,000 8,000 

   

 



 

 2 

All employees under the AFSCME Collective Bargaining Unit employed by the 
Township before November 7, 2016 with more than 5 (five) years of service shall receive 
an amount of longevity in addition to their salary. Longevity shall be paid weekly in 
accordance with the following schedule: 
 
After 5 years through 8 years of service $300 per year 

Beginning of 9 years through 15 years of service $500 per year 

Beginning of 16 years of service $800 per year 

 
The Township Committee hereby determines and fixes the compensation and salaries of 
the certain full-time and part-time officials and employees of the Township of 
Westampton not covered under any bargaining unit as follows: 
 
Salaries paid yearly: 

Classification/Title Minimum Maximum 

Township Committee Member $500 $5,000 

Administrator/Manager 60,000 145,000 

Township Clerk 16,700 75,000 

Chief Financial Officer 46,977 100,000 

Public Works Director 35,000 95,000 

Municipal Judge 10,000 41,000 

Prosecutor 10,000 35,000 

Public Defender 5,000 30,000 

Tax Assessor 10,000 65,000 

Fire Subcode Official 1,000 23,400 

Electric Subcode Official 1,000 33,000 

Plumbing Subcode Official 1,000 28,704 

Building Subcode Official 5,061 23,400 

Fire Official 1,000 30,000 

Senior Fire Inspector 1,000 5,770 

Part-Time Fire Inspector 1,000 2,500 

Recreation Director 3,000 67,000 

Probationary EMT Only 30,000 45,000 

ASCP Supervisor 18,000 32,885 

Emergency Mgmt. Coord. 3,000 5,000 

 

 

 



 

 3 

Salaries paid hourly: 

Classification Minimum Maximum 

Fire Inspector Minimum wage $25.00 

Per Diem Firefighter/EMT Minimum wage 20.00 

Per Diem EMT Minimum wage 20.00 

Summer help Minimum wage 20.00 

Snow Removal Operator Minimum wage 35.00 

Recreation Employees Minimum wage 30.00 

Recreation Secretary Minimum wage 20.00 

Crossing Guard Minimum wage 20.00 

Typist Minimum wage 20.00 

Court Records Minimum wage 20.00 

Part-Time Public Works Minimum wage 35.00 

Part-Time Violations Clerk Minimum wage 20.00 

 
All salaries not covered under any bargaining unit are determined annually by the 
majority vote of the Township Committee upon adoption of the municipal budget.  

 
The Township Committee hereby declares that all Ordinances and parts of Ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of said inconsistency. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 4 

BE IT FURTHER ORDAINED that this Ordinance shall take effect immediately 

upon final passage and publication as required by law. 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 05/16/2023 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley X  X    

Carr   X    

Mayor Henley   X    

Mungo  X X    

Wright      X 

 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Adoption –  

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       

 
Adopted upon final reading on 
June 20, 2023 

 
 

______________________________
Mayor Sandy Henley 

 
 

       Attest 
 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 
 



 

1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  
TO FIX THE SALARIES, WAGES AND COMPENSATION OF 

CERTAIN POLICE OFFICERS OF THE TOWNSHIP 
OF WESTAMPTON FOR YEARS 2022-2025 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 7-2023 

 
 BE IT ORDAINED by the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton, in the 
county of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 
The Township Committee hereby determines and fixes the compensation and salaries of the 
officials and employees of the Township of Westampton as follows: 
 

PATROLMEN        
 

2022  2023  2024  2025 
Step 1  $43,390.95 $44,692.68 $45,586.54 $46,270.33 
Step 2  $48,163.96 $49,608.88 $50,601.06 $51,360.07 
Step 3  $52,936.96 $54,525.07 $55,615.57 $56,449.80 
Step 4  $57,709.96 $59,441.27 $60,630.09 $61,539.55 
Step 5  $62,482.97 $64,357.47 $65,644.62 $66,629.29 
Step 6  $67,255.98 $69,273.66 $70,659.13 $71,719.02 
Step 7  $72,028.98 $74,189.86 $75,673.65 $76,808.76 
Step 8  $76,802.99 $79,106.06 $80,688.18 $81,898.50 
Step 9  $81,574.99 $84,022.24 $85,702.69 $86,988.23 
Step 10 $86,348.00 $88,938.44 $90,717.21 $92,077.97 
Step 11 $91,121.00 $93,854.63 $95,731.72 $97,167.70 
Step 12 $92,942.88 $95,731.17 $97,645.79 $99,110.48      

 
All officers hired prior to 2011 with more than five (5) years of service shall receive an amount 
of longevity in addition to their salary. Longevity shall be paid weekly in accordance with the 
following schedule: (Longevity is included in the adjusted base pay compensation). 

 
  a.  Conclusion of five years of employment   3.5% 
  b.  Conclusion of ten years of employment   6% 
  c.  Conclusion of fifteen years    8.5% 
  
All officers hired after January 1, 2011 with more than six (6) years of service shall receive an 
amount of longevity in addition to their salary. Longevity shall be paid weekly in accordance 
with the following schedule: (Longevity is included in the adjusted base pay compensation). 

 
  a.  Conclusion of six years of employment   3.5% 
  b.  Conclusion of ten years of employment   6% 
  c.  Conclusion of fifteen years    8.5% 
 
Existing longevity rates will be frozen at the current rate after January 1, 2017. Police Officers 
hired after September 25, 2015, shall not receive longevity benefits in addition to their salary.     
 
Holiday pay shall be added to the base salary for all officers. 



 

2 
 

Field Training Officers shall be paid $3.00 per hour worked when assigned to new/probationary 
officer as the Field Training Officer.  
Any employee appointed to the position of detective shall receive an annual bonus of $4,000 
while serving in that position. 
 

SECTION II 
 
The Township Committee hereby declares that all Ordinances and parts of Ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 5/16/2023 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley  X X    

Carr   X    

Mayor Henley   X    

Mungo X  X    

Wright      X 

 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption –  

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       
 

Adopted upon final reading on June 20, 2023 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Mayor Sandy Henley 

 
Attest 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 



 

1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
TO FIX THE SALARIES OF POLICE SUPERVISORS OF THE  

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON  
FOR THE YEARS 2021-2024 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 8-2023 

 
BE IT ORDAINED, by the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton, in the County 
of Burlington and State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 
The Township Committee hereby determines and fixes the compensation and salaries of the 
following officials and employees of the Township of Westampton for the following years: 

 
Title / Classification Minimum Salary Maximum Salary 
Chief of Police    $151,258.55 
Captain  $132,433  $137,121 
Lieutenant  $127,778  $130,334 
Sergeant Step 1 $95,508  $100,857 
Sergeant Step 2  $99,964  $105,562 
Sergeant Step 3 $104,644  $110,505 
Sergeant Step 4 $107,555  $113,580 

 
All officers hired prior to 2021 with more than five (5) years of service shall receive an amount 
of longevity in addition to their salary. Longevity shall be paid weekly in accordance with the 
following schedule: (Longevity is included in the adjusted base pay compensation). 

 
  a.  Conclusion of five years of employment   3.5% 
  b.  Conclusion of ten years of employment   6% 
  c.  Conclusion of fifteen years    8.5% 
  
All officers hired after January 1, 2021 with more than six (6) years of service shall receive an 
amount of longevity in addition to their salary. Longevity shall be paid weekly in accordance 
with the following schedule: (Longevity is included in the adjusted base pay compensation). 

 
  a.  Conclusion of six years of employment   3.5% 
  b.  Conclusion of ten years of employment   6% 
  c.  Conclusion of fifteen years    8.5% 
 
Lieutenants are not eligible for Longevity compensation. 
 
Holiday pay shall be added to the base salary for all officers. 
Any employee appointed to the position of Detective Sergeant shall receive an annual bonus of 
$3,000.00 while serving in that position. 
Field Training Officers shall be paid $2.50 per hour worked when assigned to new/probationary 
officer as the Field Training Officer.  

 
 
 
 



 

2 
 

 
 
The Township Committee hereby declares that all Ordinances and parts of Ordinances 
inconsistent with this ordinance are hereby repealed to the extent of such inconsistency. 
 

Roll Call Vote -Upon Introduction – 5/16/2023 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley X  X    

Carr   X    

Mayor Henley   X    

Mungo  X X    

Wright      X 

 

Roll Call Vote – Upon Adoption –  

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       

Carr       

Mayor Henley       

Mungo       

Wright       
 
 

Adopted upon final reading on June 20, 2023 
 

 
 
 

________________________________ 
Mayor Sandy Henley 

 
Attest 

 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

APPROVING PAYMENT OF VOUCHERS 
FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 06/20/2023 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 85-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township is in receipt of various vouchers submitted by vendors and/or 
other claimants for goods rendered and/or services provided to the Township; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Chief Financial Officer has certified that there exists a line-item 
appropriation against which each claim shall be charged and that there are sufficient funds 
available for the payment of each voucher; and 
 
 WHEREAS, each voucher contains a certification of a department head, or duly 
designated representative having personal knowledge of the facts that the goods have been 
provided or services rendered to the Township and that the goods or services are consistent with 
prior authorizations; and 
 
 WHEREAS, a list of all conforming claims which have been approved by the Chief 
Financial Officer has been prepared and reviewed by the Township Committee and is appended 
hereto as Exhibit A. 
 
 NOW BE IT RESOLVED that the Committee for the Township of Westampton for the 
reasons set forth above hereby approves the payment of the vouchers set forth on the attached 
Exhibit A and this Resolution shall be recorded as part of the minutes of this meeting and shall 
upon approval be open to the public. 
 

 I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 





































































  
   

  

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING 
CONTRACT FOR GRANT WRITING 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 86-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee of the Township of Westampton wishes to 
appoint the firm Millennium Strategies, 60 Columbia Road, Suite 230 Morristown, NJ 07960, to 
serve as Township Grant Writer for a period of one year, commencing June 20, 2023 through 
and including June 19, 2024; and  
 WHEREAS, the Local Public Contracts Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq.) requires that 
the Resolution authorizing the award of contracts for “professional services” without 
competitive bids and the contract itself must be available for public inspection; and   
 WHEREAS, notwithstanding the aforementioned exemption for competitive bidding, 
the Township Committee requested qualifications and proposals for said position and has 
awarded this contract under a “fair and open process” pursuant to N.J.S.A. 19:44A-20.4 et seq; 
and 
 WHEREAS, proposals were requested for and publicly advertised in the Burlington 
County Times on March 26, 2023, and opened in public on May 31, 2023; and 
 WHEREAS, the above-named appointee is a practitioner of a recognized profession and 
is so licensed or certified in the State of New Jersey; and   
 WHEREAS, compensation for said Township Grant Writer shall be in an amount not to 
exceed budgetary appropriations and in accordance with said Township Grant Writer‘s 
proposal.  
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the 
Township of Westampton that the contract for grant writing services be authorized to be 
executed by the appropriate officials. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at 
their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



Millennium Strategies, LLC                                                                                        

60 Columbia Road, Building B, Suite 230 

Morristown, NJ, 07960 
 

Township of Westampton  Page 1 of 2 

Service Agreement 
 
 

This Agreement is made and entered into this _______ day of _________, 2023 by and between Millennium 

Strategies, LLC (herein referred to as “Consultant”) located at 60 Columbia Road, Building B, Suite 230, Morristown, 

NJ, 07960 and the Township of Westampton (herein referred to as “Client”) located at 710 Rancocas Road, 

Westampton, NJ, 08060.   

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Consultant will provide Client with access to its Municipal Grant Research Portal Platform and Project Support 

Services. The specific scope of services to be rendered on behalf of Client are outlined and described below. 

1. Establishment of a User Platform Within Online Research Portal – Consultant will establish a user platform, 

for Client, within our online grant research portal. This platform will serve as the center for viewing detailed 

grant summaries on both municipal grant opportunities, from federal, state, county, corporate and 

philanthropic sources, that are applicable to the Client.  

 

2. Access to Detailed Grant Summaries – Consultant will post detailed grant summaries, for all available 

municipal grant opportunities, from federal, state, county, corporate and philanthropic sources, that are 

applicable to Client within the portal. These opportunities will be posted on a weekly basis and will provide 

key staff with access to information pertaining to each grant opportunity including key deadlines, eligibility 

requirements, award information, etc. Key staff from the Client’s organization will receive email notifications 

when new grants are posted and will be able to view them from within their user platform. 

 

3. Consultations on Available Grant Opportunities – Consultant will provide consultations, when requested by 

the Client, regarding grant opportunities that the Client has identified, via their portal, and may be interested 

in pursuing. These consultations will help to provide Client staff and key decision makers with guidance 

regarding the goals/objectives and other qualifying criteria associated with each grant opportunity presented 

in order to determine whether or not the opportunity is viable for Client to pursue. 

 

4. Project Support – Consultant will provide project support when requested by Client and mutually agreed to 

by Consultant. This includes assistance with the preparation of grant applications, grant administration 

activities, specialized research projects, and/or other unspecified administrative tasks related to grants. This 

does not include Project Management 

COMPENSATION 

Consultant will receive financial compensation from Client in accordance with the below listed fee schedules.  

 
1. Client will pay Consultant $400.00 monthly fee, not to exceed $4,800 per annum, for provision of services 

as set forth in Paragraphs 1- 3 of the “Scope of Services” section. The above referenced fee will be billed 

one-time annually upon execution of this agreement. 
  

2. Client agrees to pay Consultant $150.00 per hour, for provision of services as set forth in Paragraph 4 of the 

“Scope of Services” section.  For retention of Consultant for this service offering, Client expressly 

acknowledges that Consultant reserves the right to accept or reject any project support request made by Client 

at any time for any reason or no reason at all. If Consultant accepts project, Consultant will prepare in writing 

a Project Proposal for Client and will proceed only upon written acceptance from Client.  
 

TERM 

This agreement shall be for a period of twelve months commencing on June 20, 2023 and ceasing on June 19, 2024.  



Millennium Strategies, LLC                                                                                        

60 Columbia Road, Building B, Suite 230 

Morristown, NJ, 07960 
 

Township of Westampton  Page 2 of 2 

Service Agreement 
 
 

TERMINATION 

 

Either party may terminate this Agreement at any time by giving written notice, delivered by registered mail to the 

office of the other party. Termination shall occur 30 days after posting of such notice. Client will be responsible for 

any fee’s incurred prior to posting of notice. 

HOLD HARMLESS 

Each Party hereby agrees to indemnify and hold the other parties harmless from any expense, loss, liability, or claim 

incurred directly or indirectly by the responsible party with respect to any actions or omissions, authorized or 

unauthorized, of such party, its employees, agents servants subcontractors, or assignees with respect to this Agreement.  

Indemnification shall include, but not be limited to fees, claims, demands, and losses, court costs, settlement costs, 

and counsel fees whatsoever the nature, without limitation. 

ASSIGNABILITY 

This Agreement is not assignable without the prior written consent of all parties. 

BINDING 

This Agreement shall be binding upon each party's successors or assignees. 

LAW 

The terms of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of New Jersey. 

DISPUTES 

The parties hereto stipulate and agree that any dispute between them, whether equitable or legal relief is sought shall 

be venued in the Superior Court of New Jersey. Each of the parties to this Agreement further stipulates and agrees to 

the personal and subject matter jurisdiction of the Superior Court of New Jersey, in such dispute or proceeding.  

 

ACKNOWLEDGED, AGREED TO  

AND ACCEPTED BY: 

Date       For: Millennium Strategies LLC. 

   

             06/12/2023                                ________________________________                       

       Name:  Edward Farmer    

       Title:  President and CEO 

Date       For: Township of Westampton 

    

                                                                           ________________________________                       

       Name:      

       Title:   



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING  
SALE OF PUBLIC PROPERTY 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 87-23 

 
 WHEREAS, it has been determined by the Fire Chief that the 2012 KME Ladder Quint 

Fire truck is no longer needed by the Westampton Township Fire Department; and 

 WHEREAS, per N.J.S.A. 40A:11-36, a Governing Body by resolution may authorize the 

sale of public personal property no longer needed for public use by sealed bids or public auction; 

and 

 WHEREAS, the Township advertised the vehicle for sale and received bids on May 31, 

2023 to award to the highest bidder; and 

 WHEREAS, Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus, LLC, 15410 U.S. Hwy 231 Union 

Grove, AL 35175 was the highest bidder with a total bid of $285,000.00. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Governing Body of the Township of 

Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, hereby authorizes the sale of the 2012 

KME Ladder Quint Fire truck to Brindlee Mountain Fire Apparatus, LLC, 15410 U.S. Hwy 231 

Union Grove, AL 35175 at the price of $285,000.00. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 

meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 

Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

 

                                                                                          _________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 







TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

BURLINGTON COUNTY COUNTRY CLUB 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 88-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Burlington County Country Club, license number 0337-31-004-001, is a qualified applicant who 
has fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Burlington County Country Club to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

CRESCENT TEMPLE AAONMS 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 89-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Crescent Temple AAONMS, license number 0337-31-008-002, is a qualified applicant who has 
fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Crescent Temple AAONMS to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

APPLE NEW JERSEY LLC 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 90-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Apple New Jersey LLC, Applebees Neighborhood Grill & Bar, license number 0337-36-007-
004, is a qualified applicant who has fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Apple New Jersey LLC, Applebees Neighborhood Grill & Bar to be renewed with 
respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

MOUNT HOLLY 737 LOYAL ORDER OF MOOSE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 91-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Mount Holly 737 Loyal Order of Moose, license number 0337-31-005-001, is a qualified 
applicant who has fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Mount Holly 737 Loyal Order of Moose to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

POLLIN/MILLER HOSPITALITY STRATEGIES INC, 
RESOLUTION NO. 92-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
POLLIN/MILLER HOSPITALITY STRATEGIES INC, license number 0337-36-010-004, is a 
qualified applicant who has fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for POLLIN/MILLER HOSPITALITY STRATEGIES INC, to be renewed with respect 
to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

DEERWOOD COUNTRY CLUB LP 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 93-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Deerwood Country Club LP, license number 0337-33-006-002, is a qualified applicant who has 
fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Deerwood Country Club LP to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

ARCADI HOSPITALITY INC 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 94-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Arcadi Hospitality, Inc., license number 0337-33-002-014, is a qualified applicant who has fully 
complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Arcadi Hospitality, Inc. to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

HILTON EDGEWOOD MANAGEMENT LLC 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 95-23 
 

 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
Edgewood Management, LLC, license number 0337-36-009-001, is a qualified applicant who 
has fully complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for Edgewood Management, LLC to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RENEW 2023-2024 LIQUOR LICENSE 

AASHNA INC 
RESOLUTION NO. 96-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee those certain 
entities have applied to the Township Committee for a renewal of Plenary Retail Consumption 
Licenses, Plenary Retail Distribution Licenses and Club Licenses, as permitted by N.J.S.A. 33:1-
12.13; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Clerk has informed the Township Committee that the 
applications have been submitted with the proper fees and in the proper form and have otherwise 
conformed with the requirements set forth in N.J.S.A. 33:1-27; and 
 WHEREAS, the Township Committee believes that it would be in the best interest of the 
Township to renew said licenses. 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington and State of New Jersey as follows: 
 1.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons hereby declares that 
AASHNA, LLC, license number 0337-44-003-005, is a qualified applicant who has fully 
complied with the aforementioned legal requirements.  
 2.  That the Township Committee for the aforementioned reasons, hereby renews the 
license for AASHNA, LLC to be renewed with respect to the premises. 
 3.  That the Township Committee hereby directs the Township Clerk to execute the 
necessary documents to effectuate the terms of this Resolution, and the Township Committee 
hereby declares that this Resolution shall take effect June 20, 2023. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE FROM THE HUSTON GALVESTON 
REGIONAL PLANNING COMMISSION 

FOR A 2024 FORD AMBULANCE 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 97-23 
 

WHEREAS, the Westampton Fire Department provides fire-fighting and emergency medical 
services to the Township of Westampton; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-34, Westampton may authorize such sums as it may 

deem necessary for the purchase of fire and emergency equipment for use by the Fire Company 
and Emergency Medical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township and Fire Department have determined that there is a need to 

purchase an ambulance for use by the Westampton Township Fire Department; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Fire Department researched vehicles that would best serve the municipality 

and achieve the Fire Department’s goals and determined that the appropriate vehicle could be 
purchased through a nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative purchasing contract H-GAC, 
between the Houston-Galveston Area Council ("H-GAC") and Frazer, Ltd; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Fire Department has provided a written 

recommendation to purchase a 2024 Ford Ambulance through the Houston Galveston Area 
Council (HGAC) cooperative agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) and Local 

Finance Notice (LFN) 2012-10, a New Jersey municipality, under certain circumstances, may 
purchase goods and services without public bidding under the Local Public Contracts Law through 
the use of a nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative purchasing contract that has been 
developed utilizing a competitive bidding or contracting process by another contracting unit within 
New Jersey or another state; and 

 
WHEREAS, H-GAC is a regional organization of governments operating under the laws of 

the State of Texas and is a political subdivision of the State of Texas; and 
 
WHEREAS, the subject cooperative purchasing contract was awarded by H-GAC to Frazer, 

Ltd utilizing a competitive contracting process; and 
 



WHEREAS, also pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) and 
LFN 2012-10, prior to making purchases under nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative 
purchasing contracts, the municipality must determine that the use of the cooperative purchasing 
contract "shall result in cost savings after all factors, including charges for service, material, and 
delivery, have been considered"; and 

  
WHEREAS, based on the information provided by Frazer, Ltd. , the Township and Fire 

Department have each determined that Westampton's use of the H-GAC cooperative purchasing 
contract to procure the new ambulance will result in cost savings after all factors have been 
considered to the Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $281,656 and funds are available in the 

Capital Fund Account, as evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer's Certification. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of 

Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition to Frazer, Ltd., 7227 Rampart Street, Houston, Texas 77081 for 
the purchase of a 2024 Ford Ambulance, in an amount not to exceed $281,656. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 
in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 
08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING A CHANGE ORDER FOR RESOLUTION NO. 114-22 
FOR THE PURCHASE OF A 2022 FORD AMBULANCE  

 
RESOLUTION NO. 98-23 

WHEREAS, the Township Committee contracted with Frazer, Ltd., 7227 Rampart 
Street, Houston, Texas 77081 for the purchase of a 2022 Ford Ambulance, in an amount not to 
exceed $290,000. 

WHEREAS, the contractor and Township have encountered unforeseen circumstances 
requiring the change order as proposed (N.J.A.C. 5:34-11-8(c)(1); and  

WHEREAS, the Township requires additional estimated quantities as listed on Change 
Order No. 1 dated April  19, 2023, increasing the contract by $15,035.00, making the total 
amount of the contract $305,035 as requested by the Township Fire Chief; and;  

WHEREAS the amount of change order requested is a net increase of $15,035.00 which 
represents in the aggregate, an increase of 4.9%, less than the aggregate maximum increase of 
20% change order as required at N.J.A.C 5:34-11-3(a)(9); and  

WHEREAS, funds are available and have been certified to by the Township Chief 
Financial Officer for said change order; and  

WHEREAS, the Township Administrator and the Township Fire Chief have 
recommended authorization of Change Order No. 1 and authorize its execution by appropriate 
officials.  

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the 
Township of Westampton that Change Order No. 1 for the additional estimated quantities, with 
an increase in the amount of $15,035.00 be authorized to be executed by the appropriate 
officials.  

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 





TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION APPROVING A PURCHASE FROM THE NATIONAL 
PURCHASING PARTNERS GOVERNMENT COOP FOR GEAR LOCKERS 

RESOLUTION NO. 99-23 

WHEREAS, the Westampton Fire Department provides fire-fighting and 
emergency medical services to the Township of Westampton; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:14-34, Westampton may authorize such sums as 

it may deem necessary for the purchase of fire and emergency equipment for use by the Fire 
Company and Emergency Medical Services; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Township and Fire Department have determined that there is a need to 

purchase Gear Lockers for use by the Westampton Township Fire Department; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Fire Department researched gear lockers that would best serve the 
municipality and achieve the Fire Department’s goals and determined that the appropriate gear 
lockers could be purchased through a nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative purchasing 
contract NPP, between the National Purchasing Partners Government and GearGrid, LLC; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Fire Department has provided a written 

recommendation to purchase Gear Lockers through the National Purchasing Partners Government 
(NPPGov) cooperative agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) and 

Local Finance Notice (LFN) 2012-10, a New Jersey municipality, under certain circumstances, 
may purchase goods and services without public bidding under the Local Public Contracts Law 
through the use of a nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative purchasing contract that has 
been developed utilizing a competitive bidding or contracting process by another contracting unit 
within New Jersey or another state; and 

 
WHEREAS, NPPGov is a national cooperative procurement organization based in 

Seattle, WA offering publicly solicited contracts to government entities nationwide; and 
 

WHEREAS, the subject cooperative purchasing contract was awarded by NPPGov to 
GearGrid, LLC utilizing a competitive contracting process; and 

 
WHEREAS, also pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) 

and LFN 2012-10, prior to making purchases under nationally-recognized and accepted 
cooperative purchasing contracts, the municipality must determine that the use of the cooperative 
purchasing contract "shall result in cost savings after all factors, including charges for service, 
material, and delivery, have been considered"; and 



WHEREAS, based on the information provided by GearGrid, LLC , the Township and 
Fire Department have each determined that Westampton's use of the NPPGov cooperative 
purchasing contract to procure the Gear Lockers will result in cost savings after all factors have 
been considered to the Township; and 
 

WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $22,000 and funds are available in 
the Capital Fund Account, as evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer's Certification. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

 
1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and 

forward a purchase requisition to GearGrid LLC., 670 SW 15th Street, Forest Lakes, 
MN for the purchase of Gear Lockers, in an amount not to exceed $22,000. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 





TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION OF ANTICIPATION OF SPECIAL ITEMS 
OF REVENUE IN THE 2023 LOCAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET WITH 

THE CONSENT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE DIVISION 
OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 100-23 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87 permits the Director of the Division of Local 

Government Services to approve the insertion of a special item of revenue, and 

 WHEREAS, the Township is desirous of inserting this item in the 2023 local budget. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the 

Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, hereby requests the Director of the Division of 

Local Government Services to add the following items of revenue and appropriation to the 2023 

Local Municipal Budget: 

  Revenue: 
  Clean Communities Grant    $ 20,736.68 

Appropriation: 
  Clean Communities Grant    $ 20,736.68 
      
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that one copy of this resolution should be filed with the 

Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION OF ANTICIPATION OF SPECIAL ITEMS 
OF REVENUE IN THE 2023 LOCAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET WITH 

THE CONSENT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE DIVISION 
OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 101-23 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87 permits the Director of the Division of Local 

Government Services to approve the insertion of a special item of revenue, and 

 WHEREAS, the Township is desirous of inserting this item in the 2023 local budget. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the 

Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, hereby requests the Director of the Division of 

Local Government Services to add the following items of revenue and appropriation to the 2023 

Local Municipal Budget: 

  Revenue: 
  Stormwater Assistance Grant    $ 15,000.00 

Appropriation: 
  Stormwater Assistance Grant    $ 15,000.00 
      
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that one copy of this resolution should be filed with the 

Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION OF ANTICIPATION OF SPECIAL ITEMS 
OF REVENUE IN THE 2023 LOCAL MUNICIPAL BUDGET WITH 

THE CONSENT OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE DIVISION 
OF LOCAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 102-23 

 

 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:4-87 permits the Director of the Division of Local 

Government Services to approve the insertion of a special item of revenue, and 

 WHEREAS, the Township is desirous of inserting this item in the 2023 local budget. 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Township Committee of the 

Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, hereby requests the Director of the Division of 

Local Government Services to add the following items of revenue and appropriation to the 2023 

Local Municipal Budget: 

  Revenue: 
  Bulletproof Vest Grant    $ 6,734.62 

Appropriation: 
  Bulletproof Vest Grant    $ 6,734.62   
   
  
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that one copy of this resolution should be filed with the 

Director of the Division of Local Government Services. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 

held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 

Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 

 
________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING CONTRACT  
FOR JANITORIAL AND UNIFORM SERVICES 

RESOLUTION NO. 103-23 

 WHEREAS, the Public Work Department is currently using Del Vel Chemical for the 
purchase of janitorial supplies; and 

WHEREAS, the Director of Public works wishes to switch to Cintas under a coo-op 
program, which is contracted for three years with an option to cancel at any time; and 

WHEREAS, there is no additional cost increase to the Township, but could result in a 
savings dependent on the products purchased; and 

WHEREAS, the new service will provide janitorial dispensers and restocking of supplies 
upon need; and 

WHEREAS, the Director wishes to utilize CINTAS Corporation Cintas Corporation 
10080 Sandmeyer Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19116 for uniform rental, which results in a potential 
savings for reimbursable contractual allowance for clothing; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) and 
Local Finance Notice (LFN) 2012-10, a New Jersey municipality, under certain circumstances, 
may purchase goods and services without public bidding under the Local Public Contracts Law 
through the use of a nationally-recognized and accepted cooperative purchasing contract that has 
been developed utilizing a competitive bidding or contracting process by another contracting unit 
within New Jersey or another state. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township of 
Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition to CINTAS Corporation Cintas Corporation 10080 Sandmeyer 
Lane, Philadelphia, PA 19116 for the purchase of a janitorial supplies and uniforms, 
in an amount not to exceed $1,300.00. 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 
of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting held 
in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New Jersey 
08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

________________________________ 

Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE FROM A 
STATE CONTRACT VENDOR FOR 

2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
       RESOLUTION NO. 104-23 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Township and Public Works Department have determined that there is 
a need to purchase and install new flooring throughout the municipal building; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department procured quotes from three State Contract 

vendors who would best serve the municipality and achieve the Department’s goals and 
determined that the appropriate flooring could be purchased through a State Contract purchasing 
contract 20-FOOD-01063; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Public Works Department has provided a written 

recommendation to the flooring materials through the State Contract purchasing contract; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(2), a contract which exceeds the bid 
threshold could have been negotiated and awarded by the Governing Body without public 
advertising for receipt of bids, including contracts that are entered into with the United States of 
America, the State of New Jersey, county or municipality or any board, agency or authority thereof 
or any other state or subdivision of that state; and 

WHEREAS, Allstate Office Interiors located at 113 North Gold, Robbinsville, NJ 08691 
does possess the aforementioned State Contract requirements; and  

 
WHEREAS, the subject State Contract was awarded to Allstate Office Interiors to provide 

materials and labor to replace the flooring on the second floor of the Westampton Township 
Municipal Building; and



 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $69,698.10 and funds are available 

in the Capital Fund Account, as evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer's Certification. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition Allstate Office Interiors, 113 North Gold, Robbinsville, NJ 
08691 for the purchase flooring, labor and materials, in an amount not to exceed 
$69,698.10. 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

  Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 









TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION FOR MEMBER PARTICIPATION 
IN A COOPERATIVE PRICING SYSTEM 

TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE PRICING AGREEMENT 
 

RESOLUTION NUMBER 105-23 
 
 WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:11-11(5) authorizes contracting units to establish a 
Cooperative Pricing System and to enter into Cooperative Pricing Agreements for its 
administration; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Educational Services Commission of New Jersey, hereinafter referred 
to as the “Lead Agency " has offered voluntary participation in a Cooperative Pricing System for 
the purchase of goods and services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on (DATE OF ACTION) the governing body of the Township of 
Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey duly considered participation in a 
Cooperative Pricing System for the provision and performance of goods and services; and 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

TITLE 
 This RESOLUTION shall be known and may be cited as the Cooperative Pricing 
Resolution of the Township of Westampton. 

AUTHORITY 
 Pursuant to the provisions of N.J.S.A. 40A:11-11(5), the Chief Executive Officer is 
hereby authorized to enter into a Cooperative Pricing Agreement with the Lead Agency. 
 

CONTRACTING UNIT 
 The Lead Agency shall be responsible for complying with the provisions of the Local 
Public Contracts Law (N.J.S.A. 40A:11-1 et seq.) and all other provisions of the revised statutes 
of the State of New Jersey. 

EFFECTIVE DATE 
 This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, 
Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



 

 

 

Page 1 

COOPERATIVE PRICING SYSTEM AGREEMENT 

THE EDUCATIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION OF NEW JERSEY 
65-MCESCCPS 

AGREEMENT FOR A COOPERATIVE PRICING SYSTEM 

 This Agreement made and entered into this 20th day of June, 2023, by and between the 
EDUCATIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION OF NEW JERSEY and the Township of 
Westampton who desires to participate in the EDUCATIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION 
OF NEW JERSEY COOPERATIVE PRICING SYSTEM. 

W IT N E SSE T H 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:11-11(5), specifically authorizes two or more contracting 
units to establish a Cooperative Pricing System for the provision and performance of goods 
and services and enter into a Cooperative Pricing Agreement for its administration; and 

WHEREAS, the EDUCATIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION OF NEW JERSEY is 
conducting a voluntary Cooperative Pricing System with other contracting units; and 

WHEREAS, this Cooperative Pricing System is to effect substantial economies in the 
provision and performance of goods and services; and 

WHEREAS, all parties hereto have approved the within Agreement by Resolution in 
accordance with the aforesaid statute; and 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of all parties to enter into such Agreement for said purposes; 

NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the promises and of the covenants, 
terms and conditions hereinafter set forth, it is mutually agreed as follows: 

The goods or services to be priced cooperatively may include supplies and 
materials, time and material bids, energy aggregation and such other items that 
two or more participating contracting units in the system agree can be purchased 
on a cooperative basis. 

 

 



 

 

 

Page 2 

1. The items and classes of items which may be designated by the participating contracting 
units hereto may be purchased cooperatively for the period commencing with the execution 
of this Agreement and continuing until terminated as hereinafter provided. 

2. The Lead Agency, on behalf of all participating contracting units, shall upon approval of 
the registration of the System and annually thereafter IN JANUARY OF EACH 
SUCCEEDING YEAR publish a legal ad in such format as required by N.JA.C. 5:34- 
7.9(a) in its official newspaper normally used for such purposes by it to include such 
information as: 

(A) The name of Lead Agency soliciting competitive bids or informal quotations. 

(B) The address and telephone number of Lead Agency. 

(C) The names of the participating contracting units. 

(D) The State Identification Code assigned to the Cooperative Pricing System. 

(E) The expiration date of the Cooperative Pricing System. 

3. Each of the participating contracting units shall designate, in writing, to the Lead Agency, 
the items to be purchased and indicate therein the approximate quantities if required, the 
location for delivery and other requirements, to permit the preparation of specifications as 
provided by law. 

4. The specifications shall be prepared and approved by the Lead Agency and no 
changes shall be made thereafter except as permitted by law. Nothing herein shall be deemed 
to prevent changes in specifications for subsequent purchases. 

5. A single advertisement for bids or the solicitation of informal quotations for the goods or 
services to be purchased shall be prepared by the Lead Agency on behalf of all of the 
participating contracting units desiring to purchase any item. 

6. The Lead Agency when advertising for bids or soliciting informal quotations shall receive 
bids or quotations on behalf of all participating contracting units. Following the receipt of 
bids, the Lead Agency shall review said bids and on behalf of all participating contracting 
units, either reject all or certain of the bids or make one award to the lowest responsible 
bidder or bidders for each separate item. This award shall result in the Lead Agency entering 
into a Master Contract with the successful bidder(s) providing for two categories of 
purchases: 

 
(A) The quantities ordered for the Lead Agency's own needs, and 

(B) The estimated aggregate quantities to be ordered by other participating 
contracting units by separate contracts, subject to the specifications and 
prices set forth in the Lead Agency's Master Contract. 



 

 

 

Page 3 

7. The Lead Agency shall enter into a formal written contract(s) directly with the 
successful bidder(s) only after it has certified the funds available for its own needs. 

8. Each participating contracting unit shall also certify the funds available only for its 
own needs ordered; enter into a formal written contract, when required by law, 
directly with the successful bidder(s); issue purchase orders in its own name directly to 
successful vendor(s) against said contract; accept its own deliveries; be invoiced by and 
receive statements from the successful vendor(s); make payment directly to the successful 
vendor(s) and be responsible for any tax liability. 

9. No participating contracting unit in the Cooperative Pricing System shall be 
responsible for payment for any items ordered or for performance generally, by any other 
participating contracting unit. Each participating contracting unit shall accordingly be 
liable only for its own performance and for items ordered and received by it and none 
assumes any additional responsibility or liability. 

10. The provisions of Paragraphs 7, 8, 9, and 10 above shall be quoted or referred to and 
sufficiently described in all specifications so that each bidder shall be on notice as to the 
respective responsibilities and liabilities of the participating contracting units. 

11. No participating contracting unit in the Cooperative Pricing System shall issue a purchase 
order or contract for a price which exceeds any other price available to it from any other 
such system in which it is authorized to participate or from bids or quotations which it has 
itself received. 

12. The Lead Agency reserves the right to exclude from consideration any good or service if, in 
its opinion, the pooling of purchasing requirements or needs of the participating contracting 
units is either not beneficial or not workable. 

13. The Lead Agency shall appropriate sufficient funds to enable it to perform the 
administrative responsibilities assumed pursuant to this Agreement. 

14. It is understood that all fees for each participating contracting unit are paid to the Lead 
Agency by the successful bidder as follows: 

• Supplies, materials, goods and services at 2.2% of sales. 
• Natural Gas .00325 per therm 
• Electrical Aggregation.00125 per kilowatt hour 
• Demand Response at 7% of reimbursement 

All fees are included within the bid price and are subject to change with new awards 
and notice to all cooperative members will be provided. 

15. This Agreement shall become effective on 5/21/22 subject to the review and approval 
of the Director of the Division of Local Government Services and shall continue in effect 
for a period not to exceed five (5) years from said date unless any party to this Agreement 
shall give written notice of its intention to terminate its participation.  

 



 

 

 

Page 4 

 

16. Additional local contracting units may from time to time, execute this Agreement by 
means of a Rider annexed hereto, which addition shall not invalidate this Agreement with 
respect to other signatories. The Lead Agency is authorized to execute the Rider on 
behalf of the members of the System.  

17. All records and documents maintained or utilized pursuant to terms of this 
Agreement shall be identified by the System Identifier assigned by the Director, 
Division of Local Government Services, and such other numbers as are assigned by the 
Lead Agency for purposes of identifying each contract and item awarded. 

18. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the successors and 
assigns of the respective parties hereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be signed and 
executed by their authorized corporate officers and their respective seals to be hereto 
affixed the day and year above written. 

FOR THE LEAD AGENCY 
 
BY:      ATTEST BY:       
             Anthony La Marco      Name and Title 
Business Administrator/Board Secretary 

For:      
         Westampton Township 
 
 
 
BY:       ATTEST BY:       
           Sandy Henley, Mayor                                   Wendy Gibson, Township Administrator 

 



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A COOPERATIVE PURCHASE  
FROM EDUCATIONAL SERVICES COMMISSION OF NEW JERSEY  

THROUGH CENTRAL JERSEY EQUIPMENT  
FOR THE PURCHASE OF A JOHN DEERE Z997R DIESEL MOWER 

 
       RESOLUTION NO. 106-23 

. 
WHEREAS, the Township and Public Works Department have determined that there is 

a need to purchase equipment for use by the Westampton Township Public Works Department; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Public Works Department researched equipment that would best serve 

the municipality and achieve the Department’s goals and determined that the appropriate 
equipment could be purchased through the Educational Services Commission of New Jersey 
Cooperative Purchasing contract number 65-MCESCCPS Deere & Company, located at 2000 
John Deere Run, Cary, NC 27513; and its dealer Central Jersey Equipment, LLC, located at 2885 
Route 206, Bldg. 4, Columbus, NJ 08022. 

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Public Works Department has provided a written 

recommendation to purchase one John Deere Z7997R Diesel NA mower; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 52:34-6.2b.(3) (as amended by P.L. 2011, c.139) and 
Local Finance Notice (LFN) 2012-10, a New Jersey municipality, under certain circumstances, 
may purchase goods and services without public bidding under the Local Public Contracts Law 
through the use of a cooperative purchasing contract; and 

WHEREAS, based on the information provided by Central Jersey Equipment, LLC, the 
Township and Public Works Department have each determined that Westampton’s use of the 
cooperative purchasing contract to procure the John Deere Z7997R Diesel NA mower will result 
in cost savings after all factors have been considered to the Township; and 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $24,194.82 and funds are 

available, as evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer's Certification. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 

of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition to Deere & Company, located at 2000 John Deere Run, Cary, 
NC 27513 for the purchase of, (1) John Deere Z7997R Diesel NA mower in an amount 
not to exceed $24,194.82. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 

 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

  Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 





Quotes of equipment offered through contracts between Deere & Company, its divisions 

and subsidiaries (collectively “Deere”) and government agencies are subject to audit and 

access by Deere's Strategic Accounts Business Division to ensure compliance with the 

terms and conditions of the contracts.

 Vendor: Deere & Company    

 2000 John Deere Run   

 Cary, NC 27513

 Signature on all LOIs and POs with a 

signature line

 Contract name or number; or JD Quote ID 

 Sold to street address

 Bill to email address (required to send the invoice and/or to obtain the tax  

exemption certificate

Customer: 
 
Quotes are valid for 30 days from the creation date or upon contract 
expiration, whichever occurs first. 
 
A Purchase Order (PO) or Letter of Intent (LOI) including the below 
information is required to proceed with this sale. The PO or LOI will be 
returned if information is missing.

Christopher Lovenduski

Central Jersey Equipment LLC

2885 Route 206 Bldg 4

Columbus, NJ 08022

Tel:  609-288-6637

Mobile Phone:  609-352-9277

Fax:  609-288-6793

Email: clovenduski@centraljerseyequipment.com

For any questions, please contact:

 Ship to street address (no PO box)

 Bill to contact name and phone number

 Bill to address

Membership number if required by the contract



Date: 08 June 2023 Offer Expires: 31 July 2023

Confidential

Quote Id: 29003796

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Central Jersey Equipment LLC
2885 Route 206 Bldg 4
Columbus, NJ 08022
 609-288-6637
general@centraljerseyequipment.com

Prepared For:

WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

Proposal For:

Delivering Dealer:
Christopher Lovenduski

Central Jersey Equipment LLC

2885 Route 206 Bldg 4

Columbus, NJ 08022

 609-288-6637

general@centraljerseyequipment.com

Quote Prepared By:
Christopher Lovenduski

 609-352-9277

clovenduski@centraljerseyequipment.com



ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT  
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Central Jersey Equipment LLC
2885 Route 206 Bldg 4
Columbus, NJ 08022
 609-288-6637
general@centraljerseyequipment.com

Confidential

Salesperson : X ______________ Accepted By : X ______________

Quote Summary

Prepared For:
WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF 

PUBLIC WORKS
710 RANCOCAS RD
MOUNT HOLLY, NJ 08060
Business:  609-267-1891

Delivering Dealer:
Central Jersey Equipment LLC

Christopher Lovenduski
2885 Route 206 Bldg 4

Columbus, NJ 08022
Phone:  609-288-6637

Mobile:  609-352-9277
clovenduski@centraljerseyequipment.com

3% Price increase for sales exceeding $5,000 paid by Credit Card 

 

*The parties acknowledge that this is not a contract until signed by 

both parties below.  This is an estimate only, subject to approval by 

Management, and subject to approval if appropriate by all financial 

entities, and does not constitute a contract until signed by both 

parties. 

All deposits are non refundable. 

Quote ID: 29003796

08 June 2023

08 June 2023

Created On:
Last Modified On:

Expiration Date: 31 July 2023

Equipment Summary Suggested List Selling Price Qty Extended

JOHN DEERE Z997R DIESEL NA $ 31,019.00 $ 24,194.82 X 1 = $ 24,194.82

Contract: NJ Grounds Equip ESCNJ 22/23-12 (PG 0F CG 22)

Price Effective Date: October 1, 2022

Equipment Total $ 24,194.82

* Includes Fees and Non-contract items Quote Summary

Equipment Total $ 24,194.82

Trade In 

SubTotal $ 24,194.82
Est. Service 

Agreement Tax

$ 0.00

Total $ 24,194.82

Down Payment (0.00)

Rental Applied (0.00)

Balance Due $ 24,194.82



Quote Id: 29003796 Customer Name: WESTAMPTON TOWNSHIP DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC 

WORKS

     Selling Equipment

Confidential

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE MADE OUT 
TO (VENDOR):
Deere & Company
2000 John Deere Run
Cary, NC 27513     
FED ID: 36-2382580
UEID: FNSWEDARMK53

ALL PURCHASE ORDERS MUST BE SENT 
TO DELIVERING DEALER:
Central Jersey Equipment LLC
2885 Route 206 Bldg 4
Columbus, NJ 08022
 609-288-6637
general@centraljerseyequipment.com

JOHN DEERE Z997R DIESEL NA
Hours:
Stock Number:
Contract: NJ Grounds Equip ESCNJ 22/23-12 (PG 0F CG 

22)

Price Effective Date: October 1, 2022

Suggested List *
$ 31,019.00
Selling Price *
$ 24,194.82

                                * Price per item - includes Fees and Non-contract items

Code Description Qty List Price Discount% Discount 
Amount

Contract 
Price

Extended 
Contract 

Price
091STC Z997R DIESEL NA 1 $ 30,269.00 22.00 $ 6,659.18 $ 23,609.82 $ 23,609.82

Standard Options - Per Unit
001A United States/Canada 1 $ 0.00 22.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1150 26x12x12 Pneumatic Turf 

Tires
1 $ 0.00 22.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

1506 72 In. 7-Iron PRO Side 

Discharge Mower Deck
1 $ 750.00 22.00 $ 165.00 $ 585.00 $ 585.00

Standard Options Total $ 750.00 $ 165.00 $ 585.00 $ 585.00

Value Added Services 
Total

$ 0.00 $ 0.00 $ 0.00

Total Selling Price $ 31,019.00 $ 6,824.18 $ 24,194.82 $ 24,194.82



1 
 

TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE FROM A 
STATE CONTRACT VENDOR FOR 

2023 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
       RESOLUTION NO. 107-23 

 
WHEREAS, the Township and Public Works Department have determined that there is 

a need to purchase a new tire changer and balancer; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Public Works Department procured quotes from three State Contract 
vendors who would best serve the municipality and achieve the Department’s goals and 
determined that the appropriate equipment could be purchased through a State Contract 
purchasing contract A86003 T2761; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Public Works Department has provided a written 

recommendation to the equipment through the State Contract purchasing contract; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(2), a contract which exceeds the bid 
threshold could have been negotiated and awarded by the Governing Body without public 
advertising for receipt of bids, including contracts that are entered into with the United States of 
America, the State of New Jersey, county or municipality or any board, agency or authority thereof 
or any other state or subdivision of that state; and 

WHEREAS, Napa Auto Parts located at 136 Washington Street, Mount Holly, NJ 08060 
does possess the aforementioned State Contract requirements; and  

 
WHEREAS, the subject State Contract was awarded to Napa Auto Part to provide the 

equipment for the Westampton Township Public Works Department; and



2 
 

 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $13,298.00 and funds are available 

in the Capital Fund Account, as evidenced by the Chief Financial Officer's Certification. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 
of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition Napa Auto Parts located at 136 Washington Street, Mount Holly, 
NJ 08060 for the purchase flooring, labor and materials, in an amount not to exceed 
$13,298.00. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

  Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 







TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE FROM A 
STATE CONTRACT VENDOR FOR 

FIVE (5) - STALKER DSR 2 RADAR UNITS 
       RESOLUTION NO. 108-23 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Township and Police Department have determined that there is a need 
to purchase five (5) new Stalker DSR 2 Radar Units to replace aging and non-functional units; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Police Department procured quotes from a State Contract vendor who 

would best serve the municipality and achieve the Department’s goals and determined that the 
appropriate radar units could be purchased through a State Contract purchasing 17-FLEET-00726; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Police Department has provided a written 

recommendation on the radar units using the State Contract purchasing contract; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(2), a contract which exceeds the bid 
threshold could have been negotiated and awarded by the Governing Body without public 
advertising for receipt of bids, including contracts that are entered into with the United States of 
America, the State of New Jersey, county or municipality or any board, agency or authority thereof 
or any other state or subdivision of that state; and 

 

WHEREAS,  Applied Concepts, Incorporated, 855 E. Collins Boulevard, Richardson, 
TX. 75081, does possess the aforementioned State Contract requirements; and  

 
WHEREAS, the subject State Contract was awarded to Applied Concepts, Incorporated, 

to provide the radar units to replace the aging radar units; and



 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $14,065.00 and funds are available 

in the 2023 Capital Budget Bond Ordinance #5-2023, as evidenced by the Chief Financial 
Officer’s Certification.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 

of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition to Applied Concepts, Incorporated, 855 E. Collins Boulevard, 
Richardson, TX. 75081 for the purchase of Five (5) - Stalker DSR 2 Radar Units 

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

  Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



radar

855 E. Collins Blvd
Richardson, TX 75081
Phone: 972-398-3780
Fax: 972-398-3781

applied concepts, inc.

QUOTE

National Toll Free: 1-800- STALKER
Page 1 of 1

02/16/23

Reg Sales Mgr:

# 

Effective From : Lead Time:

Date:

Bill To: Ship To:
Township of Westampton
 
710 Rancocas Rd
Westampton, NJ 08060-5642

Accounts Payable
Westampton Township Police
Dept
710 Rancocas Rd
Westampton, NJ 08060-5642

Lieutenant Brian Ferguson

FedEx Ground010260Customer ID:

2070409

Daniel Rinker

+1-214-755-6324Inside Sales Partner:

Valid Through: 05/03/2023 45 working days

Diane Satoren

+1-972-801-4843

02/02/2023

diane@stalkerradar.com danielr@a-concepts.com

Qty Part Number Description Price Ext PriceLn

200-0999-405 $0.001 DSR Enhanced Counting Unit, 1.5 PCB

200-1000-405 $0.002 DSR Modular Display

200-1468-0010 $0.003 Dual DSR Ka Antenna

200-0921-005 $0.004 DSR Ergonomic Remote Control w/Screw Latch

200-0769-005 $0.005 25 MPH/40 KPH KA Tuning Fork

200-0770-005 $0.006 40 MPH/64 KPH KA Tuning Fork

200-0243-005 $0.007 Counting/Display Tall Mount

200-0244-005 $0.008 Antenna Dash Mount

200-0245-005 $0.009 Antenna Tall Deck Mount

200-0648-005 $0.0010 Display Sun Shield

155-2591-085 $0.0011 8 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67

155-2591-205 $0.0012 20 Foot Antenna Cable, IP67

200-0622-005 $0.0013 VSS Cable Kit

200-0821-005 $0.0014 DSR Documentation Kit

035-0361-005 $0.0015 Shipping Container, Dash Mounted Radar

060-1000-365 $0.0016 36 Month Warranty

Group Total $14,065.00

Grp Qty Package Description Price Ext PriceWrnty/Mo

1 5 806-0022-00 DSR 2 Antenna Radar $2,813.00 $14,065.0036

NJ State Contract 17-FLEET-00726
 Vehicle Information:
   2023 Ford Interceptor SUV

Sub-Total:

Sales Tax

Shipping & Handling:

Total: USD

Product

Discount

Payment Terms:

001

$14,065.00

$0.00

$14,065.00

0% $0.00

$0.00

$14,065.00Net 30 days

This Quote or Purchase Order is subject in all respects to the Terms and Conditions detailed at the back of this document.  These
Terms and Conditions contain limitations of liability, waivers of liability even for our own negligence, and indemnification provisions,

all of which may affect your rights.  Please review these Terms and Conditions carefully before proceeding.





TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

RESOLUTION AWARDING A PURCHASE FROM A 
STATE CONTRACT VENDOR FOR 

2023 FORD INTERCEPTOR POLICE UTILITY VEHICLE 
       RESOLUTION NO. 109-23 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Township and Police Department have determined that there is a need 
to purchase one new 2023 Ford Interceptor Police Utility Vehicle to replace an aging police 
vehicle; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Police Department procured quotes from a State Contract vendor who 

would best serve the municipality and achieve the Department’s goals and determined that the 
appropriate vehicle could be purchased through a State Contract purchasing 20-FLEET-01189; 
and  

 
WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Police Department has provided a written 

recommendation on the vehicle using the State Contract purchasing contract; and 
 

WHEREAS, pursuant to N.J.S.A. 40A:11-5(2), a contract which exceeds the bid 
threshold could have been negotiated and awarded by the Governing Body without public 
advertising for receipt of bids, including contracts that are entered into with the United States of 
America, the State of New Jersey, county or municipality or any board, agency or authority thereof 
or any other state or subdivision of that state; and 

 

WHEREAS, Winner Ford of Cherry Hill, 250 Haddonfield Berlin Road, Cherry Hill, NJ 
08034, does possess the aforementioned State Contract requirements; and  

 
WHEREAS, the subject State Contract was awarded to Winner Ford to provide the 

vehicle to replace the aging police vehicle; and



 
WHEREAS, the maximum amount of the purchase is $54,553.58 and funds are available 

in the 2023 Capital Budget Bond Ordinance #5-2023, as evidenced by the Chief Financial 
Officer’s Certification.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Council of the Township 

of Westampton, in the County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, as follows: 
 

1. The Chief Financial Officer is hereby authorized and directed to approve and forward 
a purchase requisition to Winner Ford of Cherry Hill, 250 Haddonfield Berlin Road, 
Cherry Hill, NJ 08034 for the purchase of one (1) 2023 Ford Interceptor Police Utility 
Vehicle, in an amount not to exceed $54,553.58.  

 
 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 
Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their 
meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, 
New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  

 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
 

  Roll Call Vote 
Committee 

Member 
Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 



  

 
Billie Jo Kromer  

bkromer@winnerford.com 

609-969-9054 

N.J. Contract # 20-FLEET-01189 
 

 

 

May 9, 2023 

 

Westampton Police Department 

 

2023 Ford Utility Interceptor Base Vehicle                                                         $34,844.00 

 Heavy Duty Rubber Floor 

 Cloth Front Bucket/Vinyl Rear Seat 

 Power Windows/Locks/Mirrors 

 Air Conditioning 

 AM/FM Stereo 

 Tilt Steering 

 Rear Window Defroster 

 99B 3.3L V6 Engine 

 44U 10 Speed Auto Transmission 

 43D Courtesy Lamps Disable             25.00                                                          

 60R Radio Noise Suppression       100.00 

 59B Keyed Alike (1284)        50.00 

 68G Rear Door Locks & Windows  Inoperative       75.00  

 87R Back up Camera  Rearview Mirror Display       Standard 

 17T Cargo Area  Red/Clear Dome 5”          50.00 

 86T Tail Light Prep Pkg.        60.00 

 51T Drivers Side LED Spotlight         420.00 

 549  Power Heated Mirrors          60.00   

 18D Global lock/unlock feature            N/C 

 60A Pre-Wiring for grille LED lights, siren and speaker     50.00 

 Headlamps Prep Pkg.           Standard 

 SYNC          Standard 

 Ford Telematics, includes Modem & 2 Year Trial Subscription       Standard    

 Remote Start         495.00                          

mailto:bkromer@winnerford.com


 EXTERIOR COLOR BLACK        TOTAL          36,229.00 

 Emergency Accessories             18,324.58  

o       FINAL TOTAL: $54,553.58            

 Inner Edge Duo Lightbar and Rear Duo Inner Edge 

 Dome Light 

 CORE Siren Controller with Rotary Knob and Expansion Pack/Programming 

 Vehicle to Vehicle SYNC 

 Speaker and Bracket 

 Microns in grille and Activate Headlight Flasher 

 Clear Vertex in Headlight Housing 

 Under Mirror Lights 

 Trio Ions in Rear Door Window 

 Red Blue Striplite Duos in Rear ¼ Window 

 Blue White Vertex in reverse Light and Wig Wag  

 Red White Blue White LED’s in License Area 

 Red and Blue Solo lights in Hatch opening 

 Perimeter light in Rear Hatch window 

 Havis Console with Arm rest and Cup Holder 

 2 Magnetic Mics and a dual USB 

 Havis Motion Device C-MD-317 

 Hint Electronics Tray 

 Progard Front and Rear Partition with Seat Pan and Outboard Seatbelts 

 Progard Gunrack installed Horizontally in front Cabin area 

 Powerkit Plus which includes charge guard, fuse boxes etc. 

 Stalker Power wire 

 Install Customer supplied Radio 

 Install Customer supplied Radar 

 





TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
RESOLUTION IMPOSING LIEN 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 110-23 

 
 WHEREAS, the Code Enforcement Officer of the Township of Westampton 
attempted to notify the following property owners of a violation of Chapter 95 of the 
Township Code; specifically, the failure to remove the overgrowth of grass, weeds and 
debris on the subject property; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the house appears to have been abandoned and the Township 
received no response to their letters; and 
 

 WHEREAS, the Westampton Township Public Works Department at the request 
of the Township Administrator performed the mowing and cleanup of the 
property/properties and the Public Works Director and Municipal Clerk have certified the 
costs to perform these services to the Township Committee, as shown in attached 
“Schedule A” 
 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Westampton Township 
Committee that the cost for the mowing of the properties as certified by the Municipal 
Clerk and Director of Public Works be added to and become a part of the taxes next 
assessed and levied upon such properties as provided in Chapter 95 of the Code of the 
Township of Westampton. 
 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this Resolution is forwarded to the 
Tax Collector and Mortgage Company. 

Schedule “A” 
 

75 Westwind Way  Block 203.01 Lot 32  $1,658.69 
47 Brighton Road  Block 1702 Lot 12  $   300.00 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township 

Committee of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey 
at their meeting held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas 
Road, Westampton, New Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting 
Township Clerk.  

 
 

_________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       



TOWNSHIP OF WESTAMPTON 
 

ACCEPTANCE OF PREOWNED FURNITURE 
DONATION 

 
RESOLUTION NO.111-23 

 
 

WHEREAS, N.J.S.A. 40A:5-29 authorizes the acceptance of bequests, legacies and gifts 
by local units; and  
 
 WHEREAS, The Township of Westampton has been offered a gift of preowned office 
furniture and other various fixtures valued at $16,850.00; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Township Council of the Township of Westampton recognizes that the 
acceptance of the aforesaid gift will benefit the township to help replace dilapidated furniture and 
other fixtures; and 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Township Committee of the Township 
of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey, that the Township Committee 
authorizes the acceptance of preowned donation (valued at $16,850.00) to be used by the 
Township and in accordance with the provisions of N.J.S.A.40A:5-29. 

 
I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing resolution was adopted by the Township Committee 

of the Township of Westampton, County of Burlington, State of New Jersey at their meeting 
held in the Meeting Room of the Municipal Complex, 710 Rancocas Road, Westampton, New 
Jersey 08060 on June 20, 2023. Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk.  
 
 
 
 

________________________________ 
Wendy Gibson, Acting Township Clerk 

 
Roll Call Vote 

Committee 
Member 

Introduced Seconded Yes No Abstain Absent 

Burkley       
Carr       

Mayor Henley       
Mungo       
Wright       

 
 
 
 
 



LIST OF ITEMS DONATED 

 

3-Tier Library sliding catalog shelf     $3,000.00 

3 cubicle systems with credenza cabinets    $1,500.00 

2 L-Shaped office desks      $   500.00 

Leaf Vaccuum        $   400.00 

Floor Scrubber       $1,000.00 

2 Snow Blowers       $1,000.00 

File Cabinet with Slider      $   150.00 

3 Outdoor Trex-Style Benches     $1,400.00 

15 Rolling Chairs       $1,500.00 

4 Large Foyer Floor Mats      $   200.00 

9 Desk Companion Chairs      $   900.00 

9 Breakroom Chairs       $   450.00 

Miscellaneous Public Works Supplies w/ Organizational  $3,000.00 

Miscellaneous Cleaning Supplies     $   300.00 

2 Outdoor Pop-up Tents      $    200.00 

1 Coleman Camping Grill      $    100.00 

Scaffolding Set       $    500.00 

3 White boards       $      75.00 

3 Cork boards        $       75.00 

Miscellaneous Office Supplies     $     150.00 

3 Coat Racks        $     150.00 

Rolling File Cart       $       25.00 

Shop Vac        $     100.00 

Assorted Landscaping tools      $     100.00 

3 Sports Jugs        $       75.00 

Total of Donated Items      $16,850.00 

 


	85-23 Payment of Vouchers 06.20.2023
	86-23 Award of contract for grant writer
	86-23 Grant Writer Agreement
	87-23 Authorizing Sale of Public Property backup
	87-23 Authorizing Sale of Public Property
	88-23 Burl Co Country Club Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	89-23 Crescent Temple Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	90-23 Apple Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	91-23 Mt Holly Moose Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	92-23 Courtyard Pollin Miller Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	93-23 Deerwood Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	94-23 Arcadi Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	95-23 Hilton Edgewood Liquor License Yearly Renewal Reso 2023-2024
	ADP73D7.tmp
	RESOLUTION FOR MEMBER PARTICIPATION
	IN A COOPERATIVE PRICING SYSTEM TO ENTER INTO A COOPERATIVE PRICING AGREEMENT
	RESOLUTION NUMBER 105-23
	TITLE
	AUTHORITY
	CONTRACTING UNIT
	EFFECTIVE DATE
	This resolution shall take effect immediately upon passage.




